
© 2024 City of Adelaide. All Rights Reserved. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Thursday, 25 July 2024 at 4.30 pm 

Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority 
Board Meeting Agenda, Thursday, 25 July 2024 at 4.30 pm 

Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall 
 
Membership The Lord Mayor 

4 other members appointed by the Council 
5 members appointed by the Minister for Planning 

Quorum 6 

Presiding Member The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith 

Deputy Presiding Member Elinor Walker 

Board Members Allison Bretones 

Ashley Halliday 

Justyna Jochym 

Stephanie Johnston 

Mitzi Nam 

Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape 

Craig Wilkins 

Ben Willsmore 

Proxy Board Members Professor Emeritus Damien Mugavin (for Stephanie Johnston) 

Councillor Henry Davis (for Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape) 

Dennis Rigney (for Mitzi Nam) 

 
 
 Agenda  

Purpose 
 

 
1.   Welcome and Opening 

 

  

 
 1.1   Acknowledgement of Country  

At the opening of the Board Meeting, the Board member 
presiding will state: 

‘Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority acknowledges that 
we are meeting on traditional Country of the Kaurna people 
of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect to Elders past and 
present. We recognise and respect their cultural heritage, 
beliefs and relationship with the land. We acknowledge that 
they are of continuing importance to the Kaurna people living 
today. 

And we also extend that respect to other Aboriginal 
Language Groups and other First Nations who are present 
today.’ 

 

  

 
 1.2   Apologies  

Board Members - Justyna Jochym 

   Stephanie Johnston 

 

 

 

  

 



 1.3   Confirmation of Minutes  

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Kadaltilla / 
Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 27 June 2024 be 
taken as read and be confirmed as an accurate record of 
proceedings. 

 

 4 - 10 

 
2.   Conflict of Interest 

 

  

 
3.   Presiding Member Report (verbal) 

 

  

 
4.    Public Hearing - Draft Adelaide Park Lands Management 

Strategy - Towards 2036 
4.30pm to 5.30pm 
In accordance with Section 18(4)(c) of the Adelaide Park Lands Act 
2005 (SA), Kadaltilla invites any interested person to attend and 
speak at a public meeting held in relation to the draft Adelaide Park 
Lands Management Strategy – Towards 2036. Link 1 .  
 

  

 
5.   Deputation 

 

  

 
6.   Items for Board Decision 

 

  

 
 6.1   Glen Osmond Road, Hutt Road and Park 17 Improvements 

 

For decision 11 - 23 

 
 6.2   Park Lands Leasing – Expressions of Interest: Carriageway 

Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) and Blue Gum Park / Kurangga 
(Park 20) 

 

For decision 24 - 121 

 
 6.3   Kadaltilla 2024 Annual Community Forum 

 

For decision 122 - 125 

 
7.   Items for Noting 

 

  

 
 7.1   Update on the World Heritage Listing for the Adelaide Park 

Lands and Rural Settlement Landscapes 

 

For decision 126 - 128 

 
8.   Other Business 

 

  

 
 8.1   Disc Golf Course 

 

  

 
9.   Meeting Close 

 

  

 

https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Kadaltilla_25_July_2024_Item_4_Link_1.pdf


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

Thursday, 27 June 2024 

Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall 
 

 

 

 

 

 

© 2024 CITY OF ADELAIDE. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 1.3



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority – Minutes – Thursday, 27 June 2024 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority 

Board Meeting Minutes, Thursday, 27 June 2024, at 4.32 pm 
Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall 

 

Present:  
Presiding Member The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith 

Deputy Presiding Member Elinor Walker 

Board Members Allison Bretones 

Ashley Halliday 

Justyna Jochym 

Stephanie Johnston  

Mitzi Nam 

Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape 

Craig Wilkins 

Ben Willsmore 

 
 
1 Welcome and Opening 
 
1.1 Acknowledgement of Country 

At the opening of the Board Meeting, the Board member presiding will state: 

‘Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority acknowledges that we are meeting on traditional Country of the 
Kaurna people of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect to Elders past and present. We recognise and 
respect their cultural heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land. We acknowledge that they are of 
continuing importance to the Kaurna people living today. 

And we also extend that respect to other Aboriginal Language Groups and other First Nations who are 
present today.’ 
 

 
1.2 Apologies 

Nil 
 
1.3 Confirmation of Minutes 

Moved by Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape, 
Seconded by Justyna Jochym - 

 That the Minutes of the meeting of the Board of Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 
23 May 2024 and Special meeting held on 6 June 2024 be taken as read and be confirmed as an 
accurate record of proceedings. 

Carried  
 
2 Conflict of Interest 

Justyna Jochym declared a material conflict of interest in parts 3-5 of Item 5.3 Multi-Year Major Event 
Licences pursuant to section 75 of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) as she is the Chief Executive of 
Festival City Adelaide, the industry body for South Australian Arts and Culture Festivals and that she 
would vacate the room at the time of consideration. 

The Presiding Member, the Lord Mayor declared a material conflict of interest in part 3.3 of the Item 5.3 
Multi-Year Major Event Licences pursuant to section 75 of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) as she is 
a member of the Pioneer Women’s Memorial Garden Trust and that she would vacate the room at the 
time of consideration. 

 

Page 5



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority – Minutes – Thursday, 27 June 2024 

 
 
3 Presiding Member Report (verbal) 

The Presiding Member provided a verbal report.  

 
 
4 Deputations 

Nil  

 
 
5 Items for Board Discussion and Decision 
 
5.1 Draft City Plan – Adelaide 2036 for public consultation 

Board Decision  

Moved by Ben Willsmore, 
Seconded by Craig Wilkins - 

 That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority:  

1.  Notes the update on the consultation draft of the City Plan – Adelaide 2036 as contained in 
Attachment A to Item 5.1 on the Agenda for the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority meeting 
on 27 June 2024.  

2.  Notes the Executive Officer of the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority will coordinate a 
submission to the City Plan consultation out of session. 

Carried  
 
5.2 Victoria Park Master Plan Endorsement 

Board Decision to Advise City of Adelaide 

Moved by Ashley Halliday, 
Seconded by Ben Willsmore - 

 THAT THE KADALTILLA / ADELAIDE PARK LANDS AUTHORITY ADVISES COUNCIL: 

That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 

1. Endorses the Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16) Master Plan as contained in Attachment A –
Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16) Master Plan to Item 5.2 on the Agenda for the meeting of 
Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 23 May 2024.  

Carried 
  

5.3 Park Lands Leasing - Expression of Interest King Rodney Park / Itayami-itpina (Park15) 
Board Decision to Advise City of Adelaide 

Moved by Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape, 
Seconded by Ben Willsmore - 

 THAT THE KADALTILLA / ADELAIDE PARK LANDS AUTHORITY ADVISES COUNCIL: 

That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 

1. Endorses the Council through the Acting Chief Executive Officer to enter into lease negotiations with 
Prince Alfred College (PAC) for a five-year Park Lands Community Lease Agreement for a sports 
building and playing field in King Rodney Park / Ityamai-itpina (Park 15), subject to: 

1.1. PAC entering into five-year sub-letting agreements with the Goodwood Saints Football Club 
(GSFC) and Goodwood Cricket Club (GCC).  

1.2. Priority use of the facilities in Park 15 granted to GSFC and GCC for the days and times 
detailed in this report.  

1.3. Sub-letting fees not exceeding the fees detailed in this report.  

1.4. PAC entering into other complementary sub-letting and casual hire arrangements consistent 
with the Adelaide Park Lands Leasing and Licensing Policy. 

Carried 
  

Page 6



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority – Minutes – Thursday, 27 June 2024 

5.4 Multi-Year Major Event Licences 
Justyna Jochym declared a material conflict of interest in parts 3-5 of Item 5.3 Multi-Year Major Event 
Licences pursuant to section 75 of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) as she is the Chief Executive of 
Festival City Adelaide, the industry body for South Australian Arts and Culture Festivals and that she 
would vacate the room at the time of consideration. 
The Presiding Member, the Lord Mayor declared a declared a material conflict of interest in part 3.3 of 
Item 5.3 Multi-Year Major Event Licences pursuant to section 75 of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA) 
as she is a member of the Pioneer Women’s Memorial Garden Trust and would vacate the room at the 
time of consideration. 

The Presiding Member then sought leave of the meeting to take the motion in parts to allow board 
members who have declared a conflict of interest to participate in and vote on parts where there is no 
conflict of interest. Leave was granted.  

Board Decision to Advise City of Adelaide 

 THAT THE KADALTILLA / ADELAIDE PARK LANDS AUTHORITY ADVISES COUNCIL: 

That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 
Moved by Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape, 
Seconded by Allison Bretones - 
1. Notes the proposed reintroduction of multi-year licenses for major events in the Park Lands.  
2. Notes the supporting information as presented in Attachment A to Item 5.3 on the Agenda for the 

meeting of the Kadaltilla/Adelaide Park Lands Authority meeting held on 27 June 2024. 
Carried  

Justyna Jochym then withdrew her chair and left the Colonel Light Room at 5:20pm due to her declared 
conflict of interest.  

It was then,  

Moved by Elinor Walker, 
Seconded by Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape - 
3. Endorses five-year licence agreements with the following applicants: 

3.1 Adelaide Festival Centre Trust for the use of Pinky Flat / Tarntanya Wama (Park 26) and Barr 
Smith Walk / Tarntanya Wama (Park 26) for the Oz Asia Festival’s Moon Lantern Trail from 
2024 to 2028. 

3.2 Adelaide Festival Corporation for the use of Elder Park / Tarntanya Wama (Park 26), Pinky 
Flat / Tarntanya Wama (Park 26) and Barr Smith Walk / Tarntanya Wama (Park 26) for the 
Adelaide Festival from 2025 to 2029. 

3.4 Adelaide Fringe for the use of Rymill Park / Murlawirrapurka (Park 14) for the Adelaide Fringe 
Box Office from 2025 to 2029 

3.5 Adelaide Horse Trials Management Inc for the use of Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16), 
King Rodney Park / Ityamai-itpina (Park 15), Rymill Park / Murlawirrapurka (Park 14) for the 
Adelaide Equestrian Festival from 2025 to 2029. 

3.6 African Communities Council of SA Inc (Migrant Resource Centre) for the use of Victoria 
Square / Tarntanyangga for the Unmasked African Festival South Australia from 2024 to 
2028. 

Carried 

The Presiding Member, the Lord Mayor withdrew her chair and left the Colonel Light Room at 5:21pm due 
to her declared conflict of interest.  

Elinor Walker, Deputy Presiding Member then took the Chair at 5:21pm.   
It was then – 
Moved by Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape, 
Seconded by Stephanie Johnston- 

3.3 Adelaide Festival Corporation for the use of the Pioneer Women’s Memorial Garden and 
Lady Esther Lipman Garden for Adelaide Writer’s Week from 2025 to 2029. 

Carried 

Page 7



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority – Minutes – Thursday, 27 June 2024 

The Lord Mayor re-entered the Colonel Light Room and took the Chair at 5:22pm. 

It was then –  

Moved by Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape, 
Seconded by Elinor Walker -   

3.7 Australia Day Council of South Australia for the use of Elder Park / Tarntanya Wama (Park 
26) for Aus Lights on the River – Australia Day from 2025 to 2029. 

3.8 City to Bay Fun Run Committee Incorporated for the use Hindmarsh Square / Mukata for the 
City to Bay Expo from 2024 to 2028. 

3.9 Field Trip Pty Ltd for the use of Bonython Park / Tulya Wardli (Park 27) for Field Trip Festival 
events from 2024 to 2028. 

3.10 Gluttony Food and Wine Festival Pty Ltd for the use of Rymill Park / Murlawirrapurka (Park 
14) for Gluttony from 2025 to 2029. 

3.11 Motorcycle Riders’ Association of South Australia Inc. for the use of Victoria Park / 
Pakapakanthi (Park 16) for Toy Run from 2024 to 2028. 

3.12 SidebySide Events Pty Ltd for the use of Helen Mayo Park / Tulya Wardli (Park 27) for 
Sanctuary and SidebySide from 2025 to 2029. 

3.13 St John Ambulance SA for the use of Elder Park / Tarntanya Wama (Park 26) for Carols by 
Candlelight from 2024 to 2028. 

3.14 The Gardeners of Unearthly Delights for the use of Rundle Park / Kadlitpina (Park 13) for the 
Garden of Unearthly Delights from 2025 to 2029. 

3.15 Wildlands Music Festival Pty Ltd for the use of Ellis Park / Tampawardli (Park 24) for 
Wildlands from 2025 to 2029. 

3.16 WOMADelaide Foundation for the use of Frome Park / Nellie Raminyemmerin (Park 11) for 
WOMADelaide from 2025 to 2029. 

Carried 
It was then –  
Moved by Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Keiran Snape, 
Seconded by Stephanie Johnston - 
4. Endorses a four-year licence agreement with the following applicant: 

4.1     Feast Festival for the use of Rundle Park / Kadlitpina (Park 13) for the Picnic in the Park from 
2025 to 2028. 

5. Endorses three-year licence agreements with the following applicants: 
5.1. Cheesefest Australia Pty Ltd for the use of Rundle Park / Kadlitpina (Park 13) for Cheesefest 

from 2024 to 2026. 
5.2. Fuzzy Operations Pty Ltd for the use of Ellis Park / Tampawardli (Park 24) for Listen In from 

2024 to 2026. 
5.3. Illuminate Adelaide Foundation Ltd for the use of Light Square / Wauwi, Red Gum Park & 

Prince Henry Gardens / Karrawirra (Park 12), Rymill Park / Murlawirrapurka (Park 14) and 
Rundle Park / Kadlitpina (Park 13) for Illuminate Adelaide from 2025 to 2027. 

5.4. Massive Events Corporation Pty Ltd for the use of Victoria Park /Pakapakanthi (Park 16) and 
King Rodney Park / Ityamai-itpina (Park 15) for the Adelaide Motorsport Festival from 2025 to 
2027. 

5.5. Nokturnal Events Pty Ltd for the use of Pinky Flat / Tarntanya Wama (Park 26) for 
Oktoberfest in the Gardens from 2025 to 2027. 

5.6. Vegan Festival for the use of Rundle Park / Kadlitpina (Park 13) for Vegan Festival Adelaide 
from 2024 to 2026. 

5.7. Wonderland Presents Pty Ltd for the use of Hindmarsh Square / Mukata for Wonderland 
Spiegeltent Festival Hub and Adelaide Blues Music Festival from 2025 to 2027. 

Carried  

Page 8



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority – Minutes – Thursday, 27 June 2024 

Justyna Jochym re-entered the Colonel Light Room at 5:23pm. 

  
5.5 Draft Light Square/Wauwi Master Plan for Public Consultation 

Board Decision to Advise City of Adelaide 

Moved by Craig Wilkins, 
Seconded by Ben Willsmore - 

 THAT KADALTILLA / ADELAIDE PARK LANDS AUTHORITY ADVISES COUNCIL 

That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 
1. Receives the outcomes of the targeted stakeholder consultation contained in Attachment A to Item 

5.5 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 27 June 
2024. 

2. Endorses the draft Light Square/Wauwi Master Plan contained in Attachment B to Item 5.5 on the 
Agenda for the meeting of the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 27 June 2024, for 
the purposes of community consultation. 

3. Approves the draft Light Square/Wauwi Engagement Plan contained in Attachment C to Item 5.5 
on the Agenda for the meeting of the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 27 June 
2024, for the purposes of community consultation. 

Carried  

  
5.6 Adelaide Park Lands Biodiversity Survey 

Board Decision to Advise City of Adelaide 
Moved by Elinor Walker, 
Seconded by Craig Wilkins - 

 THAT THE KADALTILLA / ADELAIDE PARK LANDS AUTHORITY RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL 
That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 
1. Receives the Adelaide Park Lands Biodiversity Survey Report contained in Attachment A to Item 

5.6 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 27 June 
2024. 

2. Notes a digital reporting framework for publicly communicating the findings of the biodiversity survey 
is in development and will be presented to Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands by September 2024.  

Carried 
 
6 Items for Noting 
 
6.1 Update on the World Heritage Tentative Listing for the Adelaide Park Lands and Rural Settlement 

Landscapes 
Board Decision  

Moved by Stephanie Johnston, 
Seconded by Allison Bretones - 

 That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 

1. Receives and notes the report contained in Item 6.1 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Board of 
Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 27 June 2024. 

Carried  
 
7 Other Business 

  Board Members congratulated the City of Adelaide regarding The Place of Reflection and Quentin 
Kenihan Inclusive Playspace projects, which both won awards or were acknowledged at the 
Australian Institute of Landscape Architecture Awards.   

  Discussion ensued surrounding examples where local government has reclaimed roads to Park 
Lands or green spaces.  

  Discussion ensued surrounding the City of Adelaide’s submission on the draft Urban Greening 
Strategy.  

Page 9



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority – Minutes – Thursday, 27 June 2024 

 

Closure 
The meeting closed at 6.06 pm 

 

The Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith 
Presiding Member 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority 

Documents Attached: 

Nil  

 

Page 10



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 

 
 

Thursday, 25 July 2024 
Board Meeting 

Glen Osmond Road, Hutt Road and Park 
17 Improvements 
 

Author:  
Mark Goudge, Associate 
Director Infrastructure 

 
Public  

 

 

Purpose 
This report presents the proposal for the rehabilitation of the existing open channel along Glen Osmond Road as 
part of the Glen Osmond Road, Hutt Road and Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) Improvements project. 
The project will address the existing concerns associated with the eroded open channel by conveying the 
stormwater flow through an underground culvert whilst conserving the existing mature trees, enhancing Park Lands 
safety and accessibility, and appropriately managing stormwater.  
As part of the project, other improvement works such as renewing the ageing road surface, lighting infrastructure, 
and construction of new shared-use path to strengthen the connection between the southern Park Lands and the 
City will also be undertaken. 
 

 

Recommendation 
 

THAT THE KADALTILLA / ADELAIDE PARK LANDS AUTHORITY ADVISES COUNCIL: 

That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 

1. Endorses the recommendation to proceed with the Glen Osmond Road, Hutt Road and Carriageway Park 
/ Tuthangga (Park 17) Improvements concept as contained in Attachment A to Item 6.1 on the Agenda 
for the meeting of Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 25 July 2024.  

2. Notes that the Administration will provide further updates to Kadaltilla as design progresses.  

 

 
 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6.1



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

Implications  
 

Adelaide Park Lands 
Management Strategy 
2015-2025 

Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy 2015-2025  
Strategy 2.2 Establish shared walking and cycling paths with safe connections and crossing 
points linking the City and inner suburbs. 
Strategy 3.1 Develop an identifiable landscape character for each Park Lands edge. 

2023-2028  
Strategic Plan 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority 2023-2028 Strategic Plan  
Strategic Plan Alignment – Environmental Performance  
Define, protect, and enhance landscape values and design qualities 

Policy Not as a result of this report. 

Consultation The community will be engaged through a project website following the endorsement of this 
project in the 2024/25 Business Plan and Budget.  

Resource Not as a result of this report. 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative Not as a result of this report. 

Opportunities Not as a result of this report. 

City of Adelaide Budget 
Allocation 

Council has allocated $42,000 for detailed design as part of its 2024/25 Business Plan and 
Budget process.  

Life of Project, Service, 
Initiative or 
(Expectancy of) Asset 

50 to 100 years asset life expectancy, depending on asset type.  

Ongoing Costs (eg 
maintenance cost) 

No additional ongoing costs expected for renewal of existing assets. The shared-use path 
and associated Park Lands lights will be new assets which will require ongoing maintenance 
costs (i.e. 2% of capital cost). 

Other Funding Sources No other external funded sources identified.  

 

 
 

  

Page 12

https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/strategy-adelaide-parklands-management.pdf?mtime=20190703124947&focal=none
https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/Kadaltilla-Strategic-Plan-2023-2028.pdf


 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

Discussion 
Background 
1. The project was initiated as a stormwater renewal project with an objective to rehabilitate the existing open channel 

along Glen Osmond Road. The open channel performs an important role for stormwater management in the area 
and requires renewal due to the deteriorated condition of the asset.   

2. The existing unfenced open channel with steep banks poses an ongoing risk to public safety, which is exacerbated 
by the progressive erosion affecting the performance of the stormwater asset and undermining the stability of the 
banks. The bank erosion will also impose irreversible damages to the row of mature sugar gums (Eucalyptus 
cladocalyx), which forms a towering avenue approach to the City. There are a total of 45 trees, including 19 
significant trees and 12 regulated trees lining the south-western bank of the channel between Greenhill Road and 
South Park Lands Creek.  

3. This project was created to address the erosion issue of the open channel to provide long-term tree health 
preservation of the existing gum trees, while maintaining the stormwater management function. Importantly, the 
project will improve access and pedestrian safety concerns created by the steep banks of the open channel.  

4. A comprehensive feasibility study was completed to consider numerous options to rehabilitate the existing open 
channel that meets the project objectives to provide an appropriate stormwater management solution, preserve the 
existing significant trees, and remove the current safety hazard due to the eroding steep banks.  

5. The options investigated included but were not limited to, like-for-like renewal of the open channel; backfilling the 
existing open channel and conveying stormwater via a culvert beneath the road; and diverting some of the 
stormwater flow through two vegetated ephemeral basins to provide environmental, biodiversity and passive 
recreational benefits. These options either didn’t fully meet the project objectives, required the removal of 
numerous existing trees, are technically infeasible, or have significant budget implication.  

6. The most feasible solution is to convey the stormwater flow via an underground culvert along its current alignment, 
allowing the existing trees to be restabilised through backfilling the open channel and creating a shallow grassed 
swale, which will provide improved amenity values and safe access along the edge of the Park Lands. 

Project scope and concept options 
7. Through an integrated design and planning approach several programmed asset renewal and upgrade works have 

been added to the open channel rehabilitation project scope, to provide an overall improvement to Glen Osmond 
Road, Hutt Road and Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17).   

8. The concept design as detailed in Attachment A features: 

8.1. Conservation of the row of sugar gum trees along Glen Osmond Road, contributing to an improved visual 
presentation of these Park Lands as one of the major entrances into the city through enablement of a more 
formal edge treatment.  

8.2. Rehabilitation of the existing open channel through an installation of 1800mm wide culvert along Glen 
Osmond Road.  

8.3. Renewal of road pavement, kerb and water table along Hutt Road. 

8.4. Renewal of road lighting along Glen Osmond Road. 

8.5. Renewal of degraded stormwater infrastructure along Glen Osmond Road.  

8.6. Construction of a new shared-use path and associated lighting within the Adelaide Park Lands along Hutt 
Road to strengthen the connection between the city and the southern suburbs for people walking, cycling 
and running. The path will extend the proposed shared-use path to be constructed under the Entry 
Statement project to Greenhill Road and adjacent suburbs, with a safer and more accommodating crossing 
at Glen Osmond Road intersection.  

Impacts to existing trees 
9. The alignment of the proposed culvert and shared-use path has been designed to minimise impacts to existing 

trees. The culvert is to be installed at the bed of the existing channel and located as far away from existing trees as 
possible to reduce any adverse impacts to the root systems. The alignment of the proposed shared-use path is 
designed to prioritise larger, healthy trees over smaller specimens and those with lower environmental and amenity 
values.  

10. An independent arborist was engaged to provide advice on potential impacts to the existing trees from the project 
during construction. The advice received is most of the tree population are in good to fair overall condition and are 
therefore expected to tolerate the proposed level of encroachment. Refer to Link 1 for the arborist report.  

Page 13

https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Kadaltilla_25_July_2024_Item_6.1_Link_1.pdf


 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

11. A total of eight trees are identified to be removed to allow a fit-for-purpose shared-use path and culvert to be built 
as part of the project. None of these trees are significant or regulated and are all less than 5m in height. Six are 
noted to be only in fair condition and of those six, two are noted to have surpassed useful life expectancy (refer to 
page 8 in Attachment A for further information).   

12. The arborist indicated that the loss of these trees will be offset by the benefits of long-term preservation and the 
proposed tree replacement planting within the wider locality of the project site, with the appropriate space to thrive.  

13. It was also noted that there are a few trees with substantial development impact based on the current design. It is 
expected that during detailed design, mitigation and protection measures will be implemented to minimise impact to 
these trees.  

14. The Administration will explore opportunities for planting of new trees within the vicinity to offset the loss of the 
eight trees proposed to be removed as part of this work. 

Next Steps 
15. [It is recommended to] replace the existing open channel with a culvert to continue to provide reliable stormwater 

management services to the catchment and the surrounding locality, while addressing ongoing erosion risk to the 
historic avenue of trees.  

16. [The project will also include] renewal of the deteriorated asset and construction of the proposed shared-use path 
to strengthen the connection between the city, the south-eastern Park Lands and the surrounding suburbs.  

17. Council has allocated $42,000 for detailed design as part of the 2024/25 Business Plan and Budget process. 
Construction is proposed to occur over two stages, commencing in the 2025/26 financial year subject to budget 
allocation, prioritising the replacement of the existing open channel with a culvert and renewal of the ageing assets, 
while the delivery of the new shared-use path will be at a subsequent stage.  

 

 

 

Data and supporting information 
Link 1 – Arborist Report  
 

Attachments 
 
Attachment A – Concept Report  

 

- END OF REPORT – 

Page 14



Glen Osmond Road, Hutt Road &  Park 17 Improvements 
Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) &  Pelzer Park / Pityarilla (Park 19)

CONCEPT
JULY 2024

P
age 15

A
ttachm

ent A



Background
The project site is predominately located within the south west corner of Carriageway Park / Tuthangga 
(Park 17) of the Adelaide Park Lands. This 16,300 sqm triangular portion of land bordered by Glen Osmond, 
Hutt, and Greenhill Roads originally comprised part of the adjoining Park 19 land parcel to the west until 
the 1960s when it was added to Park 17 for management purposes. As a result the underlying character 
of the landscape and early plantings it can be seen as more closely reflecting the previous structure and 
management practices of Park 19.

Cited in historic references to pre and post contact times, Kaurna and Aboriginal sites or activities are not 
linked specifically to this site but are generalised for the whole of the South Park Lands as ‘a landscape 
regularly occupied for encampments, food harvesting, burials, and hunting activities.’ References from the 
1860s allude to Aboriginal people having been ‘driven out’ of the South Park Lands. 

From this period it is thought the first City Gardener, William O’Brien, established the first shelterbelt tree 
plantations along the ‘Glen Osmond – Mount Barker’ Road in the Park Lands and at the project site, while 
the majority of Park 19 remained largely cleared of vegetation. Some of the shelterbelt river red gums 
(Eucalyptus camaldulensis) trees survive in the project site.

In 1915, the proposal to run a tram line through Park 19 linking Hutt Street with George Street in Parkside 
led to the construction of the extension of Hutt Road, including 7-foot-wide footpaths on either side; and 
created the new small triangular parcel of Park 19 subsequently known as Park 19A which comprises part 
of the project site. A new ‘Plan of Garden’ was conceived by City Gardener, August Pelzer, for this area as a 
passive recreational ‘pocket park’ including perimeter plantings, a meandering pedestrian pathway system 
around clumps of trees and shrub plantings, and the continuation of the ‘Ponder Avenue’ cycle track with 
sugar gums along its interface with Glen Osmond Road to Greenhill Road.  

While the park’s amenity is reduced and currently underutilised for recreational use due to the surrounding 
road environment, it still supports many large mature trees and more recent native tree plantings without 
understorey planting. The overall space is predominantly flat, draining slowly to a low point adjacent Hutt 
Road, which becomes inundated following moderate rainfall. The park area still contains a single sealed path 
beside the drainage channel along Glen Osmond Road as the present-day version of ‘Ponder Avenue’.

The project site also includes the continuation of the Glen Osmond Road drainage channel extending 
beneath Hutt Road and terminating at the South Park Lands Creek. A visual representation of the project 
context is provided on page 4. (Source of historical references: Jones, D. (2007) Adelaide Park Lands & 
Squares Cultural Landscape Assessment Study prepared for the Corporation of the City of Adelaide.)

Existing drainage channel condition and majestic Eucalyptus cladocalyx (Sugar Gum) trees historically known as ‘Ponder Avenue’ which provide a 
dramatic entry statement to the City of Adelaide

‘Plan of Park 19’ prepared by August Pelzer 1917Location Plan Extract of a 1936 aerial photograph of metropolitan 
Adelaide depicting Tuthangga/Park 17

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

2

Context

H
U

TT
 R

O
AD

GREENHILL ROAD

PELZER PARK / PITYARILLA 
(PARK 19) 

CARRIAGEWAY PARK / 
TUTHANGGA (PARK 17)

VICTORIA PARK / 
PAKAPAKANTHI 

(PARK 16)

PEPPERMINT PARK / WITA 
WIRRA (PARK 18)

SOUTH TERRACE

GLEN OSMOND ROAD

P
age 16



Project Drivers
The ageing open drainage channel is the key driver for this project scope as it requires substantial rehabilitation 
in response to the advanced state of disrepair of its retaining materials; increasing erosion of its steep banks; 
and the inadequate capacity of the existing Hutt Road culvert to convey current and future estimated flow 
rates. As a result, a prominent row of large sugar gum (Eucalyptus cladocalyx) trees lining the south side of the 
channel are under threat from the increasing extent of soil erosion around their roots. The degraded state of 
the channel is also adversely impacting the presentation of this major entrance to the city. 

These trees are identified as a key landscape feature in the Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) Community 
Land Management Plan (CLMP) as one side of the Glen Osmond Road avenue, creating a striking impression 
along this major route into the City. Together with the poor presentation of the crumbling channel, the further 
degradation and loss of these trees through neglect would affect visual amenity, become a hazard for park and 
road users, and fail to align with the City’s clear environmental commitment to protect the Park Lands’ natural 
heritage and increase city-wide greening and biodiversity. 

The project also presents an opportunity to renew other ageing assets such as roads, kerbing, street lighting 
and improve access and safety through providing a shared use path connection to Hutt Street Entry Statement 
and the inner southern suburbs.  

Project Objectives
•	 Rehabilitation of degraded stormwater infrastructure and other ageing assets such as road, kerbs and 

lighting
•	 Conservation of mature, regulated and significant trees
•	 Creation of new pedestrian and cycling link between Hutt Street Entry Statement and the inner southern 

suburbs
•	 Improvements to safety and accessibility of crossing points at Glen Osmond Road intersection 
•	 Improvements to access to bus stops and on-street car parks on Glen Osmond Road

Scope
The overall scope of the project consolidates the design and coordinated delivery of the following renewal 
components: 
•	 Rehabilitation of open drainage channels and culverts along the southern side of Glen Osmond Road 
•	 Rehabilitation of road pavement and renewal of kerb and gutter on Hutt Road
•	 New public lighting renewal along Glen Osmond Road
•	 New shared use path to link the Park Lands Trail and Greenhill Road

The project incorporates a number of planned renewal and upgrade components due to their interconnectivity 
within the project area. This includes new lighting along Glen Osmond Road, road asset renewal to Hutt Road, 
and a shared use path beside Hutt Road connecting adjacent suburbs to Hutt Street and the City.

Throughout the development of the concept design, numerous options were explored to manage stormwater, 
including; diversion of stormwater into sedimentation/detention basins, renewal of existing stormwater 
channels and relocation of the channel beneath Glen Osmond Road away from existing trees. However, 
following detailed analysis the most feasible option is to convert the channel into a culvert. 

A visual representation of the project scope is provided on page 5. Construction materials from the drainage 
channel which hold minor cultural heritage interest will be salvaged. Their reuse in the project will be 
determined during the detailed design phase.  

Strategic Context 
The Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy (APLMS) 2015-2025 identifies opportunities for this section 
of Glen Osmond Road to become a feature Park Lands city gateway with public art, and an improved urban 
interface along Greenhill Road to increase its appeal for users along this route into the City. The Strategy also 
details a number of general strategies, with the following of relevance to the project:

Strategy 2.2	 Establish shared walking and cycling paths with safe connections and crossing points 		
		  linking the City and inner suburbs

Strategy 3.1	 Develop an identifiable landscape character for each Park Lands edge.

Exposed tree roots within drainage channel

Stacked stone and concrete slab retaining wall with unsafe sheer drop into channel

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

3

P
age 17



P A R K  L A N D S  T R A I L

P O N D E R  AV E N U E

P O N D E R  AV E N U E

PELZER PARK / 
PITYARILLA (PARK 19) 

Existing shared use path and Ponder Avenue lined with 
Sugar Gums along Glen Osmond Road

Existing crossing and slip lane on the eastern side of 
Glen Osmond Road at the intersection with Hutt Road 
with poor waiting areas and high speed vehicle turning 
movements

Existing drainage channel in degraded condition Existing degraded drainage channel during rainfall event 
which presents a public safety hazard

Existing Ash tree avenue on Hutt Road (east side) with 
restricted pedestrian access

Stage 1 Project scope: 
Hutt Road South 

Kerb & Watertable 
Replacement

Adjoining Project: 
Hutt Street Entry 
Statement 

Hutt Road Resealing

Park Lands Trail 
Crossing Upgrade

Adjoining Project: 
Glen Osmond Road 
Street Lighting 
(South Park Lands 
Creek to South 
Terrace) Adjoining Project: 

Park 17 Stormwater 
Levee

Adjoining Project: 
Hutt Road and 
South Terrace Flood 
Mitigation Kerb and 
Pavement Upgrades

Stage 1 Project scope:
Glen Osmond Road 
Street Lighting 
(Greenhill Road to 
South Park Lands 
Creek)

Stage 1 Project scope:
Glen Osmond Road 
drainage channel 
renewal

Stage 2 Project scope: 
intersection upgrade 

Stage 2 Project scope: 
Network Path Link

Future Project:   
The Elm Carriageway

Completed Project:   
Victoria Park Wetlands

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

4

Overview

H
U

TT
 R

O
AD

H
U

TT
 R

O
AD

GREENHILL ROAD

SOUTH TERRACE

P A R K S I D E E A S T W O O D

GLEN OSMOND RD

Scope and Surrounding Projects

South Australian 
Croquet Association

South Terrace 
Croquet Association

Himeji 
Garden

CARRIAGEWAY PARK / 
TUTHANGGA (PARK 17)

VICTORIA PARK / 
PAKAPAKANTHI (PARK 16)

MASTERPLAN PHASE 
2022-23

Marshmallow 
Park

Off leash 
dog park

P A R K  L A N D S  C R E E K

P
age 18



P O N D E R  AV E N U E

P O N D E R  AV E N U E

Renewal of Glen Osmond 
Road public lighting 
(Greenhill Road to 
South Park Lands Creek)

Renewal of Hutt Road 
pavement (Greenhill Road 
to Park Lands Trail)

New shared use path with 
lighting to improve link 
between Parkside and 
Hutt Street (Greenhill 
Road to Park Lands Trail)

Improvements to Hutt 
Road and Glen Osmond 

Road intersection and 
pedestrian crossing 

movements

Renewal of Hutt Road 
kerb and water table 
(Greenhill Road to 
Glen Osmond Road) 

New rock lined concrete 
stormwater overflow

New garden beds at key 
nodes

Rehabilitation of open 
drainage channel, 
installation of box culvert 
and creation of grassed 
swale along Glen Osmond 
Road (Greenhill Road to 
South Park Lands Creek)

Upgrade of existing bus 
stop and new pedestrian 
link

Relocation of existing bus 
stop L1

Renewal and extension 
of existing culvert under 

Hutt Road

B

B

B

B

Location Plan

Existing
path

Existing Sugar 
Gum avenue (roots 
indicative)

New 1800 x 600mm 
culvert infill and 
reshape swale

New 1.2M 
compacted 
gravel path

New light 
poles

Section A

CH: 60.000

Existing
path

Existing Sugar 
Gum avenue (roots 
indicative)

New 1800 x 750mm 
culvert infill and 
reshape swale

New light 
poles

Section B

LEGEND

New path lighting

New street lights

Existing bus stop

Existing avenue trees

New garden bed

B

Existing path

Existing Park Lands Trail

Shared use path

Drainage channel

Underground culvert
N

0 15 40m

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

5

Project Scope

A

B

A

B

H
U

TT
 R

O
AD

H
U

TT
 R

O
AD

GREENHILL ROAD

GLEN OSMOND RD

South Australian Croquet 
Association

P A R K  L A N D S  T R A I L

S O U T H 

P A R K  L A N D S  C R E E K

PELZER PARK / 
PITYARILLA (PARK 19) 

PELZER PARK / 
PITYARILLA (PARK 19) 

CARRIAGEWAY PARK / 
TUTHANGGA (PARK 17)

Marshmallow 
Park

P
age 19



Rehabilitated drainage channel looking north-west along Glen Osmond Road and Ponder Avenue

Existing

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

6

Artist’s Impression

P
age 20



The project will retain and protect the avenue of Regulated and Significant sugar gums on Glen Osmond Road 
lining the shared use path historically known as ‘Ponder Avenue. The alignment of the proposed culvert and 
shared use path connecting the Park Lands Trail Crossing to Greenhill Road has been designed to minimise 
impacts to these trees whilst also addressing ongoing impacts of erosion within the drainage channel which 
endangers the ongoing sustainability of the trees.  

159 trees were assessed within the project area. Under the Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016, of those 
159 trees, 70 trees are ‘Unregulated Trees’, 40 trees were classed as ‘Regulated Trees’, 45 trees were identified as 
‘Significant Trees’ and 4 were classed as exempt due to species. 

Trees identified below provides a snapshot of high value trees being retained in the project. Please refer to the Treesolve 
Arborist Report for further information on trees.  

P O N D E R  AV E N U E

P O N D E R  AV E N U E

Ponder Avenue
Trees 5-7

Ponder Avenue
Trees 159-157

Ponder Avenue
Trees 23, 22, 21

Tree H46 Tree H54

Tree 223

223

23
22

 5

159-157

H46

H54

 6
7

21

Other trees to be 
protected & retained 

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

7

Tree Retention

Avenue tree to be 
protected & retained

GREENHILL ROAD

GLEN OSMOND RD

H
U

TT
 R

O
AD

P
age 21



251

227

H47

H48

172

H51

171

168

229

239
240

250
249
248

An external arborist was engaged to produce an Arboricultural Impact Assessment Report based on the Concept 
Design and provided recommendations regarding tree management. The report recommends that removal of 
eleven (11) trees would be required based on development impact or due to poor health and/or structure. 
Notwithstanding this recommendation, only eight (8) trees are proposed to be removed in order to construct the 
shared use path along Hutt Road. These removals are balanced against the long term benefits of addressing the of 
renewal of the drainage channel for the Ponder Avenue trees. 
 The alignment of the path aims to minimise impact to high value trees whilst providing a safe and direct shared use 
path as an alternative to using Hutt Road. Of the eight (8) tree removals proposed; all are less than 5m in height, six 

(6) are noted to be only in fair condition and of those six (6), two (2) are noted to have surpassed useful life 
expectancy. Tree 240, while not recommended for removal based on development impact has been proposed for 
removal as the tree has surpassed its useful life expectancy. Replacement trees will be included where space allows 
within the project site or wider locality.  
As identified in the arborist’s recommendation there are additional trees not in direct conflict with the project, but 
have been recommended for removal (163, 172, H100 and H50). These trees are recommended for removal due to 
poor health (1 tree is dead) and/or poor structure and will be further assessed by Council arboricultural staff. 
The report also notes other trees with ‘substantial development impact based on the current design. During 
detailed design mitigation and protection measures will be investigated and implemented to minimise development 
impact during construction and ensure tree sustainability. 

H46

Other trees to be 
protected & retained 

Avenue tree to be 
protected & retained

Tree 249

Tree 239

Tree 250

Tree 248

Tree 229

Tree 251

Tree 240

Tree 227

Tree to be removed

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

8

Tree Impact

Trees to be retained with 
substantial impact

P O N D E R  AV E N U E

P O N D E R  AV E N U E

GREENHILL ROAD

H
U

TT
 R

O
AD

GLEN OSMOND RD

P
age 22



Following extensive design investigations and arboricultural assessment, the following is recommended to achieve the 
project objectives:

•	 Replacement the existing open channel with a box culvert to provide reliable stormwater management to the 
catchment and surrounding locality, whilst addressing ongoing erosion risk to the existing historic avenue of 
Eucalyptus cladocalyx trees and existing street lighting;

•	 Renewal of road, bus stop and lighting assets which are interconnected with the open channel and path works; 

•	 Construction of a shared use path to strengthen the cycling and pedestrian connection between the City, south-
eastern Park Lands and inner southern suburbs

•	 Upgrade the Glen Osmond Road and Hutt Road Intersection to improve safety and accessibility. 

 

Recommendation

For Kadaltilla Review | July 2024

tech.
SERVICESGlen Osmond Road, Hutt Road & Park 17 Improvements 

9

P
age 23



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 

 
 

Thursday, 25 July 2024 
Board Meeting 

Park Lands Leasing – Expressions of 
Interest: Carriageway Park / Tuthangga 
(Park 17) and Blue Gum Park / Kurangga 
(Park 20) 
 

Author:  
Jennifer Kalionis, Associate 
Director City Culture 

Public  
 

 

Purpose 
This report presents the outcomes of an Expression of Interest (EOI) process undertaken for two Adelaide Park 
Lands community facilities in Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) and Blue Gum Park / Kurangga (Park 20). 
Undertaking an EOI is required by section 13 of Council’s Adelaide Park Lands Leasing and Licensing Policy 
(Policy). 

The leasing of these Park Lands facilities to community organisations and educational institutions supports the City 
of Adelaide Strategic Plan (2024-2028) and the key action to ‘enable community-led services which increase 
wellbeing, social connections and participation in active lifestyles, leisure, recreation and sport’. 

This report recommends to Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority (Kadaltilla) that it endorses the City of 
Adelaide offering two Park Lands Community Leases for various community sports buildings, playing fields and 
courts located in Parks 17 and 20, for a maximum term of five years. 

 

 

Recommendation 
THAT THE KADALTILLA / ADELAIDE PARK LANDS AUTHORITY ADVISES COUNCIL: 

That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 

1. Notes the Expression of Interest submissions received for the two Park Lands facilities as shown in 
Attachment A to Item 6.2 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Board of Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands 
Authority held on 25 July 2024.  

2. Endorses Council through the Chief Executive Officer to enter into lease negotiations with the applicants 
below for five-year Park Lands Lease Agreements for the sports buildings, playing fields and courts 
located in Parks 17 and 20: 

2.1. Touch Football South Australia – Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) 

2.2. Pulteney Grammar School – Blue Gum Park / Kurangga (Park 20). 

3. Notes that Administration will arrange a meeting with the North Western Junior Soccer Association to 
identify opportunities for accessing Park Lands facilities, including the playing fields programmed by the 
City of Adelaide in Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16). 

 

 
 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6.2



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

Implications  

Adelaide Park Lands 
Management Strategy 
2015-2025 

Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy 2015-2025  

Acknowledges that the Park Lands are a hub for sport and recreation: 

• Strategy 1.6: Strengthen the role of the Park Lands as a regional destination for 
competitive sport and a variety of active and passive forms of recreation.  

The Strategy contains targets to “grow organised sport by 10% with the majority of this 
growth being accommodated via increased utilisation of existing sport fields/facilities, rather 
than through additional sports zones.” (Page 41) 

2023-2028  
Strategic Plan 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority 2023-2028 Strategic Plan  
Strategic Plan Alignment – Expert Advice 
Key Action 4.1 - Provide advice on plans, projects, and policies for the Adelaide Park Lands. 

Policy 

Adelaide Park Lands Community Land Management Plan (APLCLMP) 
The APLCLMP supports leasing and licensing of various community sports facilities located 
within Park 17 and Park 20. 
Adelaide Park Lands Leasing and Licensing Policy (policy) 
The Expression of Interest (EOI) process was undertaken in accordance with Section 13 of 
the policy and the new lease agreements will be issued in accordance with the policy. 

Consultation This matter will be presented to the City Community Services and Culture Committee on 
Tuesday 6 August 2024. 

Resource The execution of the Park Lands Lease Agreements will be undertaken within current 
resources. 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative 

The current Park Lands Community Leases that were the subject of this EOI have either 
expired and are in holding over to accommodate the EoI process (Park 20 – 31 May 2024) or 
are due to expire this year (Park 17, 31 December 2024). This report recommends entering 
into new lease agreements with the successful applicants. 

Opportunities Partnering with educational institutions and community organisations to provide formal 
recreation and sport opportunities in the Park Lands.  

City of Adelaide Budget 
Allocation 

The two leases will deliver $25,372 in annual revenue in the 2024/25 financial year, indexed 
annually for the next five years. 

Has Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative or 
(Expectancy of) Asset 

Five-year lease agreements. 

Ongoing Costs (eg 
maintenance cost) The Lessees will undertake maintenance of the leased and licensed assets. 

Other Funding Sources Not as a result of this report 

Page 25

https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/strategy-adelaide-parklands-management.pdf?mtime=20190703124947&focal=none
https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/Kadaltilla-Strategic-Plan-2023-2028.pdf


 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

 

Discussion 
Background 
1. The Adelaide Park Lands Leasing and Licensing Policy (Policy) requires an Expression of Interest (EOI) process to 

be undertaken before granting any new lease for a period of greater than 12 months (including the renewal of a 
lease or licence). 

2. The results of this EOI process are being referred to Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority (Kadaltilla) for 
advice as the Policy requires that the outcome of all EOI submissions received be considered by Council.  

3. The following two Park Lands Community Leases were subject to an EOI process: 

Table 1 – Current status of Park Lands Community Lessees subject to this EOI process 

Park Facilities Current Lessee  

Carriageway Park / 
Tuthangga (Park 17) 

Building and playing fields Touch Football SA 

Blue Gum Park / Kurangga 
(Park 20) 

Buildings, playing fields, 
cricket nets and courts 

Pulteney Grammar School 

 

Expression of Interest Process and Assessment 
4. An EOI process was undertaken over a three-week period commencing Monday 27 May 2024 and concluding on 

Friday 14 June 2024 in accordance with the Policy. 

5. The EOI was promoted through Your Say Adelaide, social media posts, direct e-mails, and electronic newsletter to 
known community recreation and sport organisations and educational institutions, including organisations that had 
previously indicated an interest in leasing sporting facilities in the Adelaide Park Lands.  

6. Applicants were requested to address the following assessment criteria: 

6.1. Community Benefit (40%) 

6.1.1. The application is for community-level sport. 

6.1.2. The proposed use will benefit more than one user group. 

6.1.3. There is significant demand for the sport(s). 

6.1.4. Number of participants per session. 

6.1.5. Whilst not exclusive, the application caters for City residents, or 

6.1.6. People from underrepresented groups (Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islanders, women/girls, 
people on low incomes, newly arrived migrants, and refugees, international students, and 
people with a disability). 

6.2. Activation (40%) 

6.2.1. The application results in the facilities being used frequently i.e. can demonstrate year-round use by 
the applicant and its sub-lessees. 

6.2.2. The activities complement the existing facilities and maximise usage relative to the sports field 
carrying capacity (and potential capacity). 

6.2.3. The application caters for a wide variety of participants (e.g. by age, gender, cultural 
background, ability) and types of activities. 

6.2.4. The application does not adversely impact on residents or other users of the park. 

6.3. Management/Governance/Risk (20%) 

6.3.1. The applicant is financially reliable and has no outstanding debt or grant acquittals with 
Council or has no unresolved breach of an existing lease or licence agreement with the City 
of Adelaide or another council. 

6.3.2. The applicant is affiliated with a peak or governing body. 

Page 26



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

6.3.3. The applicant can demonstrate experience in managing facilities and has a sound 
governance/management model. 

 

7. At the closure of the EOI period, five submissions were received from the following organisations: 

7.1. Touch Football South Australia (Park 17) 

7.2. South Australian Amateur Soccer League (Park 17) 

7.3. Pulteney Grammar School (Park 20) 

7.4. North Western Junior Soccer Association (Park 20) 

7.5. City of Adelaide Lions Club (Park 20) 

8. An assessment of the submissions was undertaken in accordance with the Probity Plan developed for this EOI 
process. The table below shows the weighted scores for each submission: 

Table 2 – EOI weighted (%) scores. 

 
Community 

Benefit  
40% 

Activation 
40% 

Management
/Governance

20% 
Total  

Expression of Interest: Park 17 

Touch Football South Australia 4.8 5.2 2.4 12.4 

South Australian Amateur Soccer League 3.2 3.2 1.8 8.2 

Expression of Interest: Park 20 

Pulteney Grammar School 5.6 5.2 3 13.8 

North Western Junior Soccer Association 4 2.8 2 8.8 

City of Adelaide Lions Club 3.2 2.8 1.6 7.6 

 
9. The scoring scale is detailed below: 

9.1. Excellent = 5 

9.2. Good = 4 

9.3. Satisfactory = 3 

9.4. Unsatisfactory = 2 

9.5. Poor = 1 

9.6. No Information Provided = 0. 

10. The EOI process was managed internally with submissions assessed by a panel consisting of the following 
members of council Administration: 

10.1. Project Lead, Community Lifestyle 

10.2. Community Leasing Coordinator 

10.3. Community Facilities Coordinator. 

Carriageway Park/Tuthangga (Park 17) 
11. The EOI undertaken for Park 17 (see Image 1) was for: 

11.1. A single-storey community building with basic amenities 

11.2. Three sports fields approximately 2.84ha in total with lighting. 

Page 27



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

 
Image 1: Location Plan Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) 

12. At the closure of the EOI period, two submissions were received for Park 17. 

12.1. Touch Football South Australia. 

12.2. South Australian Amateur Soccer League 

13. The EOI panel reviewed the submissions from Touch Football South Australia and the South Australian Amateur 
Soccer League against the selection criteria and determined that: 

Touch Football South Australia 

13.1. Demonstrated capacity to program the facilities year round with 13,693 participants utilising the facilities on 
an annual basis. 

13.2. Successfully illustrated their ability to align with the Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy (APLMS) 
and strengthen the role of the Park Lands as a regional destination for competitive sport and a variety of 
active and passive forms of recreation. 

13.3. Supported the purpose for which the land is held as stated in the Adelaide Park Lands Community Land 
Management Plan (CLMP). 

13.4. As a current Lessee (since January 2020), has demonstrated the capacity to maintain facilities to a standard 
acceptable to the City of Adelaide and the community and is up to date with all Park Lands leasing 
requirements. 

South Australian Amateur Soccer League (SAASL) 

13.5. Indicated use of the facilities on weeknights (training) and weekends (competition) during the soccer season. 

13.6. Men’s participation only although indicated a desire to engage with women’s and junior teams in the future. 

14. It is recommended that Touch Football South Australia be granted a second successive five-year lease agreement 
for the facilities in Park 17.  

15. The EOI application submitted by Touch Football South Australia included the following sublessees who utilise the 
facilities in Blue Gum Park/Kurangga (Park 20) on an annual basis. 

15.1. Adelaide Hockey Club 

15.2. School Sport South Australia 

15.3. South Australian Catholic Secondary School Girls Sport Association 

15.4. South Australian Catholic Primary Schools Sports Association 

15.5. South Australian Christian Sports Association 

15.6. Sport Association for Adelaide Schools 

Page 28



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

16. Based on the significant usage demonstrated by Touch Football South Australia and the six sub-lessees, shown in 
Link 1  it is recommended that additional sub-lessees be limited to short-term and ad-hoc use.  

17. Given this, we do not foresee further permanent long-term sub-lessees being able to utilise the sporting fields and, 
on this basis, sub-lease discussions with SAASL are not proposed as their usage requirements cannot be met.  

Blue Gum Park/Kurangga (Park 20) 
18. The EOI undertaken for Park 20 (see Image 2) was for: 

18.1. Two single-storey community buildings with basic amenities 

18.2. Three storage facilities  

18.3. Six sports fields approximately 8.9ha in total, with some sports lighting 

18.4. Ten cricket nets 

18.5. Two courts (open for community access). 

 
Image 2: Blue Gum Park / Kurangga (Park 20) 

19. At the closure of the EOI period, three submissions were received: 

19.1. Pulteney Grammar School 

19.2. North Western Junior Soccer Association  

19.3. City of Adelaide Lions Club 

20. The EOI panel reviewed the submissions from Pulteney Grammar School, North Western Junior Soccer 
Association and the City of Adelaide Lions Club against the selection criteria and determined that: 

Pulteney Grammar School 

20.1. Demonstrated capacity to program the facilities year round and sub-lease to numerous organisations 
including neighbouring schools, state sporting associations, and other sporting clubs. 

20.2. Supported the purpose for which the land is held as stated in the APLCLMP. 

Page 29

https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Kadaltilla_25_July_2024_Item_6.2_Link_1.pdf


 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

20.3. Successfully illustrated their ability to align with the APLMS and strengthen the role of the Park Lands as a 
regional destination for competitive sport and a variety of active and passive forms of recreation. 

20.4. As a current Lessee for over 100 years, Pulteney Grammar School has demonstrated the capacity to 
maintain facilities to a standard acceptable to the City of Adelaide and the community and is up to date with 
all Park Lands leasing requirements. 

North Western Junior Soccer Association 

20.5. Demonstrated strong junior participation with over 3,000 junior male and female soccer participants. 

20.6. Use was primarily limited to the soccer season. 

City of Adelaide Lions Club 

20.7. Indicated minimal use year-round. 

20.8. Use was primarily limited to the summer season 

21. It is recommended that the Pulteney Grammar School be granted a five-year lease agreement for the facilities in 
Park 20.  

22. The EOI application submitted by Pulteney Grammar School included the following sublessees who will continue to 
utilise the facilities in Blue Gum Park/Kurangga (Park 20) on an annual basis. 

22.1. South Australian Cricket Association (SACA) Women’s Cricket Program 

22.2. Century Cricket Club 

22.3. South Australian National Football League (SANFL) Umpires 

22.4. Pulteney Old Scholars Association (POSA) Men’s Cricket 

22.5. POSA Men’s Football 

22.6. POSA Women’s Football 

22.7. Glenelg Cricket Club 

22.8. POSA Men's Soccer 

22.9. POSA Women’s Soccer 

22.10. Sturt Cricket Club 

22.11. Walkerville Cricket Club 

22.12. St Aloysius College 

22.13. Michael Aish Football Academy 

22.14. Sports Association for Adelaide School 

23. The North Western Junior Soccer Association’s needs cannot be met at Park 20 through a sublease. Given that the 
Association represents the participation of over 3,000 junior boys and girls in community sports, it is recommended 
that the Administration work with the Association to identify opportunities for accessing Park Lands facilities, 
including the playing fields programmed by the City of Adelaide in Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16).  

Lease Agreements – Terms and Conditions 
24. It is recommended that the following high-level terms and conditions be negotiated as part of the two new lease 

agreements: 

24.1. Term: Five years 

24.2. Building Rent: $55 per square metre, discounted by 70% (educational institutions) and 80% (community 
recreation and sport organisations) and reviewed annually by 4%. 

24.3. Licence Fees (where applicable): As per the City of Adelaide’s annually endorsed Fees and Charges, 
applied from 1 July each year. 

24.4. Permitted Use: Community sport, physical education and associated community development (not-for-profit) 
activities. 

Next Steps 

Page 30



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

25. Subject to Kadaltilla’s endorsement, Administration will recommend to the City Community Services and Culture 
Committee on 6 August 2024, that the two Park Lands Community Lease Agreements for five years are negotiated 
with the successful applicants.  

26. Subject to Council’s approval, Administration will notify all EOI applicants of the outcome.  

27. The successful applicants will be given until 30 September 2024 to sign and return the new Park Lands Community 
Lease Agreements for execution by Administration.  

28. Administration will liaise with the North Western Junior Soccer Association to identify opportunities for this 
organisation to access Park Lands facilities, including accessing the playing fields programmed by the City of 
Adelaide in Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16). 

 

 

Attachments 
Attachment A – Expression of Interest submissions for two Park Lands Community Leases – June 2024  
 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 31



Page 32

Attachment A



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 

 
 

Thursday, 25 July 2024 
Board Meeting 

Kadaltilla 2024 Annual Community Forum 
 

Author: Kathryn Goldy, Acting 
Manager Governance 
 

Public 
 

 

Purpose 
It is a requirement under section 4.10 of the Kadaltilla Charter that an Annual Community Forum be held by the end 
of October in each year at a place and time determined by resolution of the Kadaltilla/Adelaide Park Lands 
Authority (Kadaltilla). Notice of the Annual Community Forum must be given to Board Members and the public at 
least 21 days prior to the scheduled date. 

The proposed format of the 2024 Annual Community Forum is multiple pop-up sessions, held over four separate 
days in four different locations.  This approach is in order to target different sections of the population and to reach 
non-Park Lands users and was successful in 2023 when it was deployed for the first time. The theme for the 2024 
Annual Community Forum will be “Rediscover Your Park Lands”. 

The purpose of this report is to seek the approval of Kadaltilla for the theme, proposed dates and locations to host 
the 2024 Annual Community Forum. 
 
 

Recommendation 
That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 

1. Approves the theme for the 2024 Annual Community Forum as “Rediscover Your Park Lands”. 

2. Approves the 2024 Annual Community Forum to be held on: 

2.1. Saturday 31 August 2024 from 12:00pm to 2:00pm at Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16)  

or  
Sunday 8 September 2024 from 12:00pm to 2:00pm at G S Kingston Park / Wirrarninthi (Park 23). 

2.2. Wednesday 18 September from 11:00am to 1:00pm at Hindmarsh Square / Mukata  

or  
Saturday 14 September 2024 from 11:00am to 3:00pm at Gladys Elphick Park / Narnungga (Park 
25) 

2.3. Thursday 3 October 2024 from 10:00am to 12:00pm in Blue Gum Park / Kurangga (Park 20)  

or  
Peppermint Park / Wita Wirra (Park 18) 

2.4. Wednesday 9 October 2024 from 10:00am to 12:00pm in Lefevre Park / Nantu Wama (Park 6). 

3. Authorises administration in consultation with the Kadaltilla/Adelaide Park Lands Authority Presiding 
Member to alter the date and/or time of any of the above community forum events, if required. 

 
 
 

Page 122

Agenda Item 6.3



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

Implications  
Adelaide Park Lands 
Management Strategy 
2015-2025 

Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy 2015-2025  
The Annual Community Forum will be used to engage with stakeholders and the 
community on the revised Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy (APLMS). 

2023-2028  
Strategic Plan 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority 2023-2028 Strategic Plan  
Strategic Plan Alignment – Expert Advice 
4.5 Increase the profile of the Kadaltilla Board 

Policy Not as a result of this report 

Consultation Not as a result of this report 

Resource 
Delivery of an Annual Community Forum will require announcement of the forum and 
public engagement solicited in two ways: an on-site engagement (the Forum) and 
interactively via an online website which will be hosted on the City of Adelaide Our 
Adelaide webpage. 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative 

It is a requirement under the Kadaltilla Charter that an Annual Community Forum is held 
by the end of October in each year at a place and time determined by resolution of the 
Board. 

Opportunities 
The Annual Community Forum provides an opportunity for diverse input from a range of 
perspectives while increasing awareness of the APLMS and understanding of the Park 
Lands. 

City of Adelaide 
Budget Allocation $6,000 

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative or 
(Expectancy of) Asset 

Not as a result of this report 

Ongoing Costs (eg 
maintenance cost) Not as a result of this report 

Other Funding 
Sources Not as a result of this report 

 

  

Page 123

https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/strategy-adelaide-parklands-management.pdf?mtime=20190703124947&focal=none
https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/Kadaltilla-Strategic-Plan-2023-2028.pdf


 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

Discussion 
1. The Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Charter (Kadaltilla Charter) sets out the requirement for an 

Annual Community Forum in section 4.10, which states: 

4.10.1  An Annual Community Forum shall be held by the end of October in each year at a place and time 
determined by resolution of the Board. 

4.10.2  Notice of the Annual Community Forum must be given to Board Members and accessible by the 
public at least 21 days prior to the scheduled date. 

4.10.3  A reasonable number of copies of any document or report supplied to Board Members for the 
Annual Community Forum must be available for members of the public at the forum. 

4.10.4  The Annual Community Forum will be conducted in a place accessible to the public to discuss 
business of a general nature aimed at reviewing the progress and direction of the Authority. 

2. The purpose of the Annual Community Forum is to allow members of the public a chance to meet with 
Kadaltilla Board Members and discuss directly with Board Members activities that were undertaken by 
Kadaltilla in the previous financial year or planned upcoming activities by Kadaltilla.  

3. Kadaltilla Board Members and Administration can also use the forum as an opportunity to gauge community 
feedback on new policies or proposals, such as the Kadaltilla 2023-2028 Strategic Plan or the updated 
Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy (APLMS). 

4. The theme for the 2024 Annual Community Forum is proposed to be “Rediscover Your Park Lands”. The 
theme is intended to encourage exploration of the Park Lands and the diversity of its various offerings to the 
community. 

5. The 2024 Annual Community Forum is proposed to be four 2-4 hour pop-up sessions held on four days (a 
mixture of weekdays and weekends) in four different locations in order to target different members of the 
public. 

5.1. Pop-Up Session 1 is proposed to be held in either: 

5.1.1. Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16) on Saturday 31 August 2024 from 12:00pm to 2:00pm; 
or  
G S Kingston Park / Wirrarninthi (Park 23) on Sunday 8 September 2024 from 12:00pm to 
2:00pm. 

5.2. Pop-Up Session 2 is proposed to be held in either: 

5.2.1. Hindmarsh Square / Mukata on Wednesday 18 September from 11:00am to 1:00pm;  

or  
Gladys Elphick Park / Narnungga (Park 25) on Saturday 14 September 2024 from 11:00am to 
3:00pm. 

5.3. Pop-Up Session 3 is proposed to be held on Thursday 3 October 2024 from 10:00am to 12:00pm in 
either: 

5.3.1. Blue Gum Park / Kurangga (Park 20) in front of TreeClimb Adelaide  

or 
the Adelaide Zoo entrance off Plane Tree Drive 

or 
Peppermint Park / Wita Wirra (Park 18) in front of Adelaide Himeji Garden. 

5.4. Pop-Up Session 4 is proposed to be held in Lefevre Park / Nantu Wama (Park 6) at the Glover 
Playground North Adelaide on Wednesday 9 October 2024 from 10:00am to 12:00pm. 

6. The location of Pop-Up Session 1 has been selected to coincide with sporting matches and target sporting 
spectators through one of two possible locations: 

6.1. Location 1 targets the soccer match on Victoria Park Southern Oval, and Cricket and Pedal Prix on the 
Criterium Track. The date and time of Pop-Up Session 1 for Location 1 has been selected to coincide 
with the scheduled soccer and cricket matches and peak attendance rates to maximise public 
attendance opportunities. 

Page 124



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

6.2. Location 2 targets a West Adelaide Raptors Soccer match and sporting spectators. The date and time 
of Pop-Up Session 1 for Location 2 has been selected to coincide with the scheduled West Adelaide 
Raptors Soccer Club match and peak attendance rates to maximise public attendance opportunities. 

7. The location of Pop-Up Session 2 has been selected to either target: 
7.1. Non-Park Lands users: 

7.1.1. The date and time of this Pop-Up Session 2 has been selected to coincide with lunchtime to 
maximise foot traffic in and through the square. 

7.2. Partnership with a large, planned event occurring in the Park Lands: 
7.2.1. The date and time of Pop-Up Session 2 has been selected to coincide with the “Skate Park 

Leagues” event to maximise public attendance opportunities. 
7.2.2. The “Skate Park Leagues” (SPL) is a free entry event being held in Gladys Elphick Park / 

Narnungga (Park 25) on Saturday 14 September 2024 from 11:00am to 4:00pm.  
7.2.3. Skate Park Leagues bring communities together in a public space where they have the 

opportunity to feel connected and celebrate the talents of local skate park users of all ages, 
genders and backgrounds together. This is done through running the SPL series which are 
community-based grassroots events focusing on positive participation with Skate, Scoot, (Inline 
in TAS) and BMX competitions. The SPL series encourages a positive skate park culture of 
support and inclusion in the skate competitions. 

8. The location of Pop-Up Session 3 has been selected to target a popular Park Lands attraction with mixed 
demographics. 

8.1. The date and time of Pop-Up Session 3 has been selected to coincide with visitors to one of three 
popular Park Lands attractions being TreeClimb, Adelaide Zoo, or Adelaide Himeji Garden. 

9. The location of Pop-Up Session 4 has been selected to target families with young children attending. 

9.1. To maximise public attendance opportunities, the date and time of Pop-Up Session 4 have been 
selected to coincide with the school holidays and the busy period at the North Adelaide Glover 
Playground and therefore this pop-up session has been allocated a 4 hour time slot. 

10. The locations of the Annual Community Forum pop-up sessions have been selected to meet the following 
requirements: 
10.1. Disability access. 
10.2. Proximity to accessible parking and public transport. 
10.3. Showcase an area of the Adelaide Park Lands, where applicable. 

11. Adjoining Council locations were considered, however other locations identified did not meet the 
requirements. 

12. In 2022 the annual community forum was held at one location, the Adelaide Pavilion in Veale Gardens; on 
that day approximately 100 people participated. 

13. Last year approximately 400 people participated in person at the 2023 Annual Community Forum, which was 
held over four pop-up sessions at: 
13.1. The Adelaide Central Market on Tuesday 12 September 2023 from 11:00am – 1:00pm 
13.2. Mary Lee Park (Park 27B) on Sunday 17 September 2023 from 10:00am – 12:00pm 
13.3. Victoria Park / Pakapakanthi (Park 16) on Sunday 8 October 2023 from 10:00am – 12:00pm 
13.4. Pelzer Park / Pityarilla (Park 19) on Thursday 19 October 2023 from 11:00am – 1:00pm 

14. The different format of the Community Forum proved very successful for community engagement and 
therefore it is proposed that the 2024 Annual Community Forum again be held at various locations across 
the City. The pop up sessions will discuss business of a general nature aimed at reviewing the progress and 
direction of Kadaltilla. Giveaways such as coffee and plants may be used to maximise public engagement. 

 
 

Attachments 
Nil 
 

- END OF REPORT – 

Page 125



Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 

 
 

Thursday, 25 July 2024 
Board Meeting 

Update on the World Heritage Listing for 
the Adelaide Park Lands and Rural 
Settlement Landscapes 

Author:  
Sarah Gilmour, Associate 
Director Park Lands, Policy & 
Sustainability 

Public 
 

 

 

Purpose 
The purpose of this report is to provide an update on the progress of the Tentative List submission for the World 
Heritage Bid for Adelaide and its Rural Settlement Landscapes. 
 

 

Recommendation 
That the Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority: 

1. Receives and notes the report contained in Item 7.1 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Board of 
Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 25 July 2024. 

 

 
 

Page 126

Agenda Item 7.1



 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

Implications  

Adelaide Park Lands 
Management Strategy 
2015-2025 

Adelaide Park Lands Management Strategy 2015-2025  
Outcome - The Park Lands are valued as a National Heritage site worthy of World 
Heritage Listing  
Action 1 – Secure a commitment to pursue World Heritage listing  
Action 2 – Develop the case for World Heritage listing. 

2023-2028  
Strategic Plan 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority 2023-2028 Strategic Plan  
Strategic Plan Alignment – Cultural Value  
Objective 1.4 Champion the development of World Heritage listing nomination  
Initiative 1.4 Regularly review World Heritage listing submission progress  
Measure of Success 1.4 State Government support for World Heritage listing 
submission by 2026. 

Policy The World Heritage listing of Adelaide and its rural settlement landscapes seeks to 
landmark the site and protect the area for future generations to enjoy and appreciate. 

Consultation Not as a result of this report 

Resource Not as a result of this report 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative Not as a result of this report 

Opportunities 

Opportunities created through World Heritage listing include:  
• Improved understanding and recognition of the significance of Adelaide and its rural 

settlement landscapes  
• Global profile and cultural tourism business and international investment attraction  
• Creating a shared narrative about Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander culture and 

history that aligns with colonial settlement  
• Greater levels of protection for the Adelaide Park Lands. 

City of Adelaide 
Budget Allocation 

The 2024/25 Annual Business Plan and Budget did not allocate funding towards 
progressing the World Heritage Bid. Project management of the bid is being managed 
within existing resources. 

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative or 
(Expectancy of) Asset 

Not as a result of this report 

Ongoing Costs (eg 
maintenance cost) Not as a result of this report 

Other Funding 
Sources 

The Mount Lofty Consortium (the Consortium) has noted that there is approximately 
$60,000 remaining in a fund set up by the Consortium to contribute towards the ongoing 
development of the World Heritage bid. Until there is clarity in the World Heritage 
Governance arrangements, this funding is being retained by the Consortium (Adelaide 
Hills Council). 

 

Page 127

https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/strategy-adelaide-parklands-management.pdf?mtime=20190703124947&focal=none
https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/Kadaltilla-Strategic-Plan-2023-2028.pdf


 
 

Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands Authority Meeting – Agenda - Thursday, 25 July 2024 
 

Discussion 
Current Status 
1. On 12 March 2024 Council decided to review partnership arrangements for the World Heritage Bid and 

Tentative List submission (Link 1).  

2. The City of Adelaide is continuing to liaise with World Heritage expert Duncan Marshall AM to discuss the 
next steps required to progress a World Heritage Tentative List submission to meet a February 2026 
timeframe.  

3. In response to the matter of a Preliminary Assessment as raised by Kadaltilla / Adelaide Park Lands 
Authority at the June 2024 meeting, the City of Adelaide understands: 

3.1. The Preliminary Assessment acts as a gateway and further assurance for a bid before significant 
investment is made in developing the full bid documentation.  

3.2. While UNSECO has not mandated the Preliminary Assessment until 2028, the Federal Government is 
already requiring the Preliminary Assessment for Australian bids. 

3.3. The Preliminary Assessment is undertaken once a Tentative List submission has been accepted. It is 
an opportunity for enhanced dialogue with the World Heritage advisory bodies on the feasibility of a 
World Heritage Bid.  

4. Based on the two-step assurance process, there is some de-risking of the Tentative List submission, as 
additional detail can be developed through the Preliminary Assessment. 

Related Activity 
5. In direct response to the Kadaltilla Strategic Plan 2023-2028, the City of Adelaide has engaged consultants 

to undertake a literature review on the cultural, social, environmental and economic values of the Adelaide 
Park Lands.  

5.1. The literature review will inform the development of a methodology to assess the economic 
contribution of the Adelaide Park Lands.  

5.2. Undertaking the formal assessment will be subject to future budget considerations and is currently 
unfunded. 

Next Steps 
6. The next update is proposed to be presented to Kadaltilla at its meeting on 24 October 2024. This will allow 

Administration to progress the items listed at paragraph 2 and 5.1. 

7. Administration is continuing to enact Council decision of 12 March 2024 in relation to partnership 
arrangements for the World Heritage Bid (Link 1). 

 

 

Data and Supporting Information 
Link 1 – Agenda, City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee, Tuesday, 5 March 2024 
 

 

Attachments 
Nil 
 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 128

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/s17004/Committee%20Update%20on%20the%20World%20Heritage%20Listing%20for%20the%20Adelaide%20Park%20Lands%20and%20Rural%20Settlement%20Land.pdf
https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/s17004/Committee%20Update%20on%20the%20World%20Heritage%20Listing%20for%20the%20Adelaide%20Park%20Lands%20and%20Rural%20Settlement%20Land.pdf
https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/s17004/Committee%20Update%20on%20the%20World%20Heritage%20Listing%20for%20the%20Adelaide%20Park%20Lands%20and%20Rural%20Settlement%20Land.pdf

	Agenda
	1.3 Confirmation of Minutes
	6.1 Glen Osmond Road, Hutt Road and Park 17 Improvements
	Purpose
	Implications
	Discussion
	Data and supporting information
	Attachments
	Attachment 1 for Glen Osmond Road, Hutt Road and Park 17 Improvements

	6.2 Park Lands Leasing – Expressions of Interest: Carriageway Park / Tuthangga (Park 17) and Blue Gum Park / Kurangga (Park 20)
	Purpose
	Implications
	Discussion
	Attachments
	Attachment A - Expression of Interest submissions for two Park Lands Community Leases – June 2024

	6.3 Kadaltilla 2024 Annual Community Forum
	Purpose
	Implications
	Discussion
	Attachments

	7.1 Update on the World Heritage Listing for the Adelaide Park Lands and Rural Settlement Landscapes
	Purpose
	Implications
	Discussion
	Data and Supporting Information
	Attachments




